#### NOTICE

A meeting of the City of Evansville Economic Development Committee will be held on the date and at the time and location stated below. Meetings are typically held the 3rd Monday of each month. Notice is given that members of the City Council might be in attendance. Requests for persons with disabilities who need assistance to participate in this meeting should be made by calling City Hall: (608)-882-2266 with as much advance notice as possible.

#### City of Evansville **Economic Development Committee** Regular Meeting <u>Palace Meets Coworking, 17 W Main Street</u>, Evansville, WI 53536 Monday, January 16, 2023, 6:00 p.m. **AGENDA**

- 1. Call to Order
- **2.** Roll Call
- **3.** Motion to approve the agenda
- **4.** Motion to waive the reading of the minutes of the November 21, 2022 regular meeting and approve them as printed.
- **5.** Civility Reminder
- 6. Citizen appearances, other than listed agenda items
  - A. Jodi Saevre, Owner of Palace Meets Coworking
- 7. Monthly Reports
  - A. Community Development Update
  - **B.** Chamber of Commerce Report
  - C. Tourism Commission Report
- 8. Discussion
  - A. Introductions and Icebreakers with New Members
  - **B.** Organizing the 2023 Business Summit
- 9. Next Meeting Date: February 20, 2023 at 6:00pm
- 10. Motion to Adjourn

-Jim Brooks, EDC Chair

These minutes are submitted by the Community Development Director and are not official until approved by the City of Evansville Economic Development Committee.

#### City of Evansville Economic Development Committee Monday, October 17, 2022 6:00 PM

#### MINUTES

#### 1. Call to Order. Brooks called meeting to order at 6:00pm

#### 2. Roll Call:

	<b>Present/Absent</b>
Chair James Brooks	Р
Ben Ladick, Vice Chair	Р
Jon Alling	Р
Abbey Barnes	Р
Sue Berg	Р
Brandon Rutz	Р
Vacant	

Others Present Com. Dev. Director Colette Spranger Bill Lathrop, Evansville Today City Administrator Jason Sergeant

- 3. <u>Motion to Approve Agenda</u> by Berg, seconded by Rutz, approved unanimously.
- 4. <u>Motion to waive the reading of the minutes of the October 17, 2022 meeting and approve them</u> <u>as printed</u> by Ladick, seconded by Berg, approved unanimously.
- **5.** Civility Reminder. Brooks reminded the committee of the City's commitments to civil discourse.
- 6. Citizen Appearances, other than listed agenda items. None

#### 7. Monthly Report

- **A. Community Development Update.** Spranger gave the report. The City has been accept as a Connect Community with the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation.
- **B.** Chamber of Commerce Report. Barnes gave the report on behalf of the Chamber. There was low turnout for Olde Fashioned Christmas due to extremely cold weather. Three good things that happened included appearances by the Grinch and Mrs Claus with help by the Fire Department, carriage rides remaining popular, and no flooding.
- **C. Tourism Commission Report.** Berg gave the report. Nancy Nelson has stepped down, effective January. Jenny Wiedel is now the representative from Creekside. Berg is seeking more members.

#### 8. Discussion.

A. 2023 EDC Goals. The group discussed and finalized the City's goals for economic development in 2023. They were: Visiting Local Businesses, Redeveloping the Economic

Development part of the City's website, redeveloping the Building Improvement Grant and Revolving Loan Fund programs, developing a master plan for the Highway 14 corridor area, providing opportunities for incubating new businesses in Evansville. These will provide the focus for the group's work for 2023.

**B.** Closed session: Upon proper motion and vote, the Economic Development Committee went into closed session pursuant to section 19.85 (1) (e) of the Wisconsin statutes because the body conducted other specified public business involving public property that involves competitive or bargaining reasons.

The Committee did not reconvene after the closed session.

#### 9. Next Meeting Dates: Monday, December 19, 2022 at 6:00pm.

December 19, 2007

Marty Rowley Rowley's Landscape 35 North Water Street Evansville, WI 53536

Dear Marty Rowley,

Please join me, other business owners and elected local leaders on **January 12, 2008** for **Evansville's Economic Development Summit.** The purpose of the Summit is to explore the issues related to our community's economic development and set the direction for future economic growth. It is the next step in the Evansville Economic Development Committee's process of developing an economic development plan. Initially, five focus groups were conducted late this summer to begin gathering insights from local business owners.

The Summit is a very important activity in this process and your input is crucial. During the Summit, large and small business owners, City and neighboring town leaders and leading resource representatives will meet to gain an understanding of the major economic issues, identify the key issues the City should address and develop goals to recommend to the Economic Development Committee. A professional facilitator will guide the process. **Ken Hendricks**, owner of ABC Supply and Inc. magazine's 2006 Entrepreneur of the Year, will be the keynote speaker for the forum. Participants will have the opportunity to work in small groups as well as meet other business owners and explore potential business opportunities. The outcome of the Summit will be used to produce an Economic Development Plan that will chart a course for Evansville's economic prosperity.

Please mark your calendar now and plan to participate in The Economic Development Summit.

Date: Saturday, January 12, 2008 Place: Evansville High School Commons Registration: 8:30 a.m. Facilitated Activity: 8:50 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. Lunch and refreshments will be served

I really encourage you to attend and be part of determining Evansville's economic future. Please complete the enclosed registration form and return to me by January 4, 2008. When you RSVP, you will be sent a packet of background information related to Evansville's economic development. If you have further questions, please contact, Judy Whalen of Whalen & Associates, Inc. at 608-455-2090 or at summit@whalen.com.

Thank you for your considering my request that you participate in the Economic Development Summit. The future vitality of Evansville is greatly impacted by our economic development.

Thank you,

Mayor Sandy Decker Enclosure



**Evansville Economic Development Summit** 

**Information Packet** 

January 8, 2008

Dave Sauer Foth Infrastructure & Environmental 1402 Pankratz St., Suite 300 Madison, WI 53704

Dear Dave Sauer,

I am sorry you are unable to attend the Evansville Economic Development Summit on Saturday, January 12<sup>th</sup>. We are enclosing the information packet prepared for summit attendees as you requested.

The materials were selected to provide information:

- 1. On the current economic environment
  - a. Focus Groups Report
  - b. Excerpts from the *Allen Creek & North Union Street Redevelopment Master Plan* by R.A. Smith & Associates, Inc.
  - c. Excerpts from the Smart Growth survey results for Evansville and neighboring towns.
- 2. That stimulates thinking about your business
  - a. Article on Re-branding from the *Wall Street Journal*
  - b. Article on Succession Planning from the Wall Street Journal
  - c. Excerpt from the book "Live First, Work Second," by Rebecca Ryan.
- 3. On basic demographics
  - a. Evansville at a Glance.

This background provides identifying key economic issues that need to be addressed in the Economic Development Plan.

If you have any questions about this material, please contact me at 608-882-2266 or Judy Whalen, the facilitator of the Summit at <u>summit@whalen.com</u> or 608-455-2090.

Thank you again for your interest in developing Evansville's economic vitality. We will send you a meeting summary and the resulting economic development plan when they are available.

Sincerely,

Mayor Sandy Decker Enclosures



**Information Packet** 

January 10, 2008

Mike Klassy Bank of Evansville 12 J. Lindemann Drive Evansville, WI 53536

Dear Mike Klassy,

Thank you for accepting my invitation to attend the Evansville Economic Development Summit on Saturday, January 12<sup>th</sup>. The event will take place in the High School Commons. Registration will begin at 8:30 a.m. The program will begin at 8:50 a.m. Coffee and doughnuts will be available when you arrive as well as tables of resource materials. We are anticipating a large group, so please plan your arrival to allow time for registration, coffee and browsing the resource materials.

Enclosed are materials for your review prior to the Summit. The materials were selected to provide information:

- 1. On the current economic environment
  - a. Focus Groups Report
  - b. Excerpts from the *Allen Creek & North Union Street Redevelopment Master Plan* by R.A. Smith & Associates, Inc.
  - c. Excerpts from the Smart Growth survey results for Evansville and neighboring towns.
- 2. That stimulates thinking about your business
  - a. Article on Re-branding from the *Wall Street Journal*
  - b. Article on Succession Planning from the Wall Street Journal
  - c. Excerpt from the book "Live First, Work Second," by Rebecca Ryan.
- 3. On basic demographics
  - a. Evansville at a Glance.

Please review the materials prior to the Summit. This background information will be helpful to you as part of the Summit will involve small groups identifying key economic issues that need to be addressed in the Economic Development Plan.

If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-882-2266 or Judy Whalen, the facilitator of the Summit at <u>summit@whalen.com</u> or 608-455-2090.

Thank you again for your interest in developing Evansville's economic vitality.

Sincerely,

Mayor Sandy Decker Enclosures

## WHALEN & ASSOCIATES, INC.

15626 West Holt Road Brooklyn, WI 53521 608-455-2090 Fax: 608-455-2087 Email: judy@whalen.com www.whalen.com



# **Evansville Economic Development Project**



# Evansville Economic Development Plan

Final Report

Prepared by:

## Whalen & Associates, Inc.

approved July 23, 2008

www.whalen.com judy@whalen.com 608-455-2090

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

FABLE OF CONTENTS	2
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	3
BACKGROUND	3
THE PROCESS	3
KEY STRATEGIC ISSUES	4
GOALS AND OBJECTIVES	4
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN	7
KEY STRATEGIC ISSUES	7
ACTION PLANS	7
OUTCOME MEASUREMENT	9
APPENDIX	

Special recognition and thank you to Rebecca DeMarb, Evansville Economic Development Committee and James Otterstein, Rock County Economic Development Manager for the their efforts in drafting and editing this document.

#### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

#### BACKGROUND

The Evansville Economic Development Committee ("EDC") contracted Whalen & Associates, Inc. in June, 2007 to design and facilitate a process that would result in an Economic Development Plan (the "Plan"). The project fulfills an action item of Evansville's Smart Growth Plan. The Smart Growth Plan on page 133 states that Evansville "needs more commercial and industrial development to permit the City to reduce its relatively high property tax rate without reducing services." (The related action item is #9 on page 213.) The project's planning team consisted of Mayor Sandy Decker, City Administrator Dan Wietecha, Chamber of Commerce Promotional Director Bridgit Larsen and consultant Judy Whalen.

#### THE PROCESS

- EDC used a series of **information gathering activities** to provide data from which the Plan would be developed including:
  - Focus Groups Five focus groups were conducted involving 26 representatives of agribusiness, manufacturing, retail, service and construction/development.
  - **Phone Survey** 135 businesses were identified to be contacted by the UW-Whitewater Small Business Development Center (SBDC.) Thirty-three phone surveys were completed as of January 20, 2008.
  - Summit The Economic Development Summit was conducted January 12, 2008 to provide business representatives the opportunity to provide further input into the topics that should be addressed in the Economic Development Plan. 94 people participated in the Economic Development Summit. A total of 58 local businesses were represented. The Economic Development Summit identified the strategic issues for the next step, the Task Forces.
- EDC appointed five **Task Forces**, composed of 32 community volunteers, to develop the goal, objectives and action plans for the five key strategic issues:

- Workforce Development
- Downtown Revitalization
- Intergovernmental Relations (This topic was later changed to: Business, Community and Government Relations).
- Marketing
- Entrepreneurial Environment
- The **Task Forces** presented their recommendations to the Economic Development Committee April 17, 2008.
- The Economic Development Committee met three times to review the task forces recommended action plans, met with selected task force representatives to gain more clarity, and also met with representatives of the Evansville Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors before finalizing the Economic Development Plan.
- The Economic Development Committee approved the Plan on July 23, 2008.

#### **KEY STRATEGIC ISSUES**

Five key strategic issues are addressed in this Plan. These are: (no priority assigned to order)

- 1. Workforce Development
- 2. Downtown Revitalization
- 3. Business, Community and Government Relations
- 4. Marketing
- 5. Entrepreneurial Environment

#### **GOALS AND OBJECTIVES**

The goals and objectives for each key strategic issue are:

#### Workforce Development

**Goal:** To develop and nurture co-operative working networks to secure the resources to build an adaptable and skilled workforce with a positive work ethic and a strong sense of personal responsibility.

**Objective #1:** Access and utilize existing business networks

- **Objective #2:** Maximize the use of existing education-based networks
- **Objective #3:** Maximize the use of community-based organizational networks.
- **Objective #4:** Maximize the use of government networks

#### Business, Community and Government Relations

**Goal:** To develop a cooperative, intergovernmental, straight-forward, and clearly defined process to reach out, attract and retain a broad economic base for Evansville.

- **Objective #1:** Research options that would enable Evansville to form a "stand-alone" Economic Development Alliance.
- **Objective #2:** Improve Web internet tools for use by the members of the Economic Development Alliance.
- **Objective #3:** Expand outreach between governmental bodies, i.e. local, county, and state.
- **Objective #4:** Review city regulations so the regulations and process of adhering to the regulations are streamlined, simple, user-friendly and communicated in an easy to understand manner.

#### Downtown Revitalization

**Goal:** To create a healthy, vibrant and walkable downtown by expanding and attracting employment, shopping and social activities

**Objective #1:** Host a downtown retail start-up fair to connect entrepreneurs with information on maintaining an existing business and opening a new business and acquiring funding.

Objective #2:	Develop a pilot business for the principle objective of
	creating a template for new business start-ups.

- **Objective #3:** Form a steering committee to develop a user-friendly manual for city government and the public that lists a menu of low-cost tools and strategies for revitalizing Evansville's central business district.
- **Objective #4:** Create a green business initiative to form the "Allen Creek Collective," a green business mall in downtown Evansville.

#### Marketing

- Goal: To promote Evansville's businesses, services and recreational opportunities to residents, non-residents and businesses.
  - **Objective #1:** Improve marketing to local and surrounding communities
  - **Objective #2:** Make Evansville a "destination location."

#### Entrepreneurial Environment

- **Goal:** To facilitate the interaction of entrepreneurial people, ideas, and resources.
  - Objective #1: Create a better networking environment for local businesses.
    Objective #2: Develop greater access to high speed internet services
    Objective #3: Create a Business Resource Center for the City (both web and brick & mortar)
    Objective #4: Develop incentives for existing and start-up businesses

#### ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN

#### **KEY STRATEGIC ISSUES**

Five key strategic issues are addressed in the Economic Development Plan. These are: (no priority assigned to order)

- 1. Workforce Development
- 2. Downtown Revitalization
- 3. Business, Community and Government Relations
- 4. Marketing
- 5. Entrepreneurial Environment

#### **ACTION PLANS**

The following action plans are the outcome of the work of the task forces and the review and discussion of the Economic Development Committee.

One theme is common across the Task Forces and points to the obvious area for the EDC to focus to accomplish the goals of the five Task Forces in the most efficient and comprehensive manner. Evansville needs a funded, centralized entity to direct economic development activity and move this Plan forward.

EDC believes that its primary action must focus on creating the structure for some kind of partnership with the City of Evansville, the Economic Development Committee, the Chamber of Commerce, the Redevelopment Authority, Evansville Community Partnership and/or others (identified as an "Alliance"). The goal of the Alliance will be to reduce redundancy and inefficiencies in the action being taken already within the community and to focus community leaders on a shared vision for Evansville's economic future.

This Alliance would include a person or, perhaps, entity who would be a centralized resource and who would be responsible for implementing many of the Task Force objectives. For example, the Alliance would coordinate retail fairs, market Evansville's economic opportunities, work as a conduit between the City of Evansville and prospective businesses, work to promote Evansville's community development as a way to attract businesses and develop incentives for businesses.

Other communities have this type of centralized person or entity in place including Main Street Programs, Economic Development Corporations, and hybrid actions such as in Milton, Wisconsin. EDC does not have the information necessary to decide what structure would work best for an Alliance in Evansville. Therefore, EDC's first action step is to explore and identify various options and make a recommendation to the City Council by December of 2008.

While researching Alliance structures, EDC will undertake the following strategic actions immediately:

- Workforce Development: EDC will work with the Evansville Community School District to investigate opportunities for a RISE Grant program to parallel the framework of the Department of Public Instruction's Framework for 21<sup>st</sup> Century Skills program. EDC will prompt this investigation by October 1, 2008.
- Downtown Revitalization: EDC will work with the Chamber of Commerce to collect an inventory of available store fronts downtown. EDC will request that the Chamber of Commerce complete this inventory by October 1, 2008.
- 3. Business, Community and Government Relations: EDC is taking on the work necessary to make a recommendation to the City Council for an Alliance, as described above. This process is central to achieving the goals of this Task Force.
- 4. Marketing: Improved signage in Evansville, primarily "way-finding signs," is in progress. The signs are expected to be installed by October, 2008.
- 5. Entrepreneurial Environment: EDC will work with the Chamber of Commerce to start an Inventors & Entrepreneur's club in Evansville, with the goal of holding the first meeting by October 1, 2008. In addition, the Chamber of Commerce is working with the Eager Free Public Library to inform the community of the business resources available at the Library. A public meeting regarding these resources is scheduled for September, 2008.

These are the first steps for implementing the Economic Development Plan. Full details are included in the Appendix. EDC expects to charge the Alliance, once it is active and empowered, with the primary responsibility for implementing the full Economic Development Plan. EDC anticipates that the Alliance will be composed of a variety of community organizations and that it will operate with the assistance of EDC, as needed. The Alliance will be accountable to the EDC for implementation of the Economic Development Plan.

#### **OUTCOME MEASUREMENT**

The Economic Development Committee will lead the progress review process of the Plan by:

- Requesting quarterly progress reports on the various strategic issues.
- Meeting with selected "champions" or others involved with implementation of the goals, as needed, to more fully understand progress or adjust action plans as needed.
- Discussing the overall progress of meeting the Plan's goals and objectives at least once every six months.
- Reviewing the overall strategy at least once a year.
- Using the Action Plans as a guide for topics for agendas for the Economic Development Committee meeting agendas.
- Requesting measurement assessments from the appropriate parties.

# APPENDIX

- Focus Groups Report
- Phone Interview Report
- Summit Report
- Task Forces Report